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PLANNING Board Meeting Minutes 
7:00 pm Wednesday May 11, 2022 

Town Hall 503 Geyser Road 
 

1. Pledge to the Flag 
 

Ms. Stevens would you please lead us in a Pledge to the Flag. 

 

2. Chairman announcement(s) 
I have just a couple of announcements.  First the Planning Board and Zoning Board 

did conduct a joint workshop meeting on April 28 regarding the Milton Solar project 

at 209 Stone Church Rd. At this point the applicant has asked the ZBA and PB to 

allow them to work with the adjoining property owners and come back with their 

proposal.  The PB is on hold on this project until the ZBA considers an area variance. 

We have a new addition to our Planning and Building Department Team; Sue Wos 

has been hired for the position on Planning and Zoning Board Clerk.  She will be 

training with Bill Lewis and Patti over the next several months and eventually taking 

on all or our meeting duties.  Welcome Sue and we look forward to working with 

you. 

We have received a request from the applicant for the Mobile Home Park expansion 

at 709 Route 29 to postpone the public hearing scheduled for this evening.  There is 

a concern abut the actual zoning district boundaries of the project.  If there are 

members of the public here this evening, we apologize for the last-minute change in 

the agenda, but you can present any comments you have during the open public 

comment period. 

Bill Keniry and I have engaged in conversation with County Attorney Michael 

Naughton regarding the Gateway House near the Airport, this was before us back in 
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2020, no advancement at that time.  The County does need to do something for 

today’s requirements. They will be meeting again with Mr. Naughton and most likely 

have an application for us and ZBA.  

Bill Lewis and I have been working with Joe Dannible and his legal team regarding 

the Cisar Brothers planned development on Stone Church Road. There have been 

multiple meetings held and meetings schedule in the future to discuss the PDD 

which is front of the Town Board at this time.  

That is all I have for announcements.  Does anyone from the Board have anything 

they’d like to bring up at this point? 

Nancy Padula: Are there any Planning and Zoning training opportunities available.  

Chairman Bartow: We will be looking into that. The County decided not to do theirs, 

but there are online opportunities and through the Department of state. I would like 

to see an in-person training.   

 

 

3. Approval of minutes from April 28, 2022  
Chairman Bartow: As noted above the Planning Board and ZBA conduct a 

workshop on April 28th, but there were no actions taken and no minutes to be 

recorded.  

I will entertain a Motion to approve the Planning Board meetings Minutes of April 

13, 2022, with correction to page 11. Mr. Whittel Second, Mr.  Marsicano, any 

discussion or changes. Please poll the Board. Mr. Marsicano yes; Ms. Padula yes; 

Mr. Collins abstain; Ms. Stevens yes; Mr. Whittel yes; Charmain Bartow yes 

 

4. Public Comment 
Chairman Bartow: At this point we will open the meeting to comments from the 

public. Please note that we do have two Public Hearings this evening for the 312 

Rowland St. and 201 Northline Rd.  So, if you have comments on those projects 

please wait until we start the hearings so your comments will be on the record. 

 

We continue to have both virtual and in-person opportunities for comments so I 

would ask that if you are Zooming with us and want to make a public comment, 

please use the hand wave feature, or submit via the Q&A button and alert us to 
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your interest in commenting. If you have dialed in on the phone and would like to 

make a comment, please text Bill Lewis at 518-376-1831 and provide him your 

name and interest in making a comment. 

 

I would also ask that we are limiting individual comments to 3 minutes and for 

commentors to try and avoid redundant comments. If you have written comments, 

please summarize them and if you would like you can leave a copy with us, and we 

will share them with all board members. 

 

Public comment opened at 7:06pm. 

Public comment closed at 7:07pm. 

 

5. 7:05pm – Public Hearing - 312 Rowland Street – 

Neighborhood Kitchen – Site Plan Review and Special Use 

Permit – 190.10-3-25.1 

Chairman Bartow: Our first project this evening is the continued review of the 

Neighborhood Kitchen project at 312 Rowland St. We reviewed this briefly at our 

March meeting but did not delve into the project as the applicant was not 

present, and the ZBA was scheduled to consider a use variance at their March 

meeting. The ZBA did grant a use variance at their March meeting and the project 

is now before us for Site Plan Review.  

Everyone should have before them: 

1. Site Plan Review Application dated 2/8/22 
2. Special Use Permit Application dated 2/8/22. This is not relevant since the 
ZBA has issued a Use Variance. 
3. Short Environmental Assessment Form dated 2/8/22. The ZBA took lead 
agency for this project, so we have no further SEQRA obligations. 
4. Agricultural Data Statement dated 2/7/22 
5. Survey of the property dated 2/9/21 
6. Updated Site Plan Map dated 4/13/22 
7. Ten Eyck Septic Inspection Failure 4/25/22 
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Is there a representative of the applicant present who would like to update us on 
the project? 
 
Chip Lawrence: I wanted to confirm that all members had a copy of the revised 
rendered view site plan dated April 26th. With regards to the Storm Water plan, 
we, spoke with the Town Engineer. We revised the plan after comments made by 
the Town engineer at the last meeting. We took out the expansion of the asphalt 
to the northern part of the property to the rear of the building. Due to the existing 
septic system in back left corner, we took off the proposed asphalt leaving the 
existing footprint of impervious surface, building and parking lot. With no changes 
made to asphalt, no Storm Water prevention is needed. Ryan and I took a look 
after a couple of storms and noticed the rainwater runs slightly down the center 
of the asphalt parking lot, drains to south on the right hand side, into soils and 
seeps in quickly.  Are there any questions regarding the Storm Water plan?  

 
Charmain Bartow: Are you ok with that Bill Lewis? 

 
Bill Lewis: I am ok with that; I went out on site today to look at the ground and as 
the applicate stated, it does pumps in center, crown to both sides, it is a pre-
existing structure with no changes to site plan. The water pretty much seeps in. I 
don’t see any need for a Storm Water mechanism at this time. Storm Water is a 
mute point.  

 
Chip Lawrence: Moving onto the septic, we had the septic pumped and the 
inspector looked at it. He noted a few minor repairs that could be made. We 
tentatively hired him depending on the outcome of tonight’s meeting to make 
those repairs to the existing septic. There is a tree in the back right corner behind 
the building. Septic inspector sent a camera down after pumping system. He saw a 
root structure from the tree. He suggested cutting the tree down. In the original 
inspection it noted that there was no grease trap, but there is a grease trap inside 
the building that leads into the septic. Inspector noted that the volume of activity 
we are taking on, the existing septic is more than adequate. Likely we will be 
parking in the back, there are 6 parking spaces including handicap spaces in front 
for parking along with required van access. For the northern part of the property, 
we proposed putting in a gate, for screening, we will wrap the dumpster and 
fencing mainly for respect for neighbors in back, you won’t see it from the road 
because the gate will be closed. 
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Charmain Bartow: Dumpster will be in the back? How will the truck get back 
there? Will it be next to the building, and you will be screening all the way 
around? 

 
Chip Lawrence: yes, dumpster will be in the back? There will just be a gate. 
The dumpster will be behind the gate with screening all the way around.  
We have covered the dumpster with enclosing screening, improving the existing 
septic, verifying that there is a good working grease trap in place. We will be 
working with Bill before opening and continuing communication with the 
neighbors. We will improve the landscaping that has been overgrown. We spoke 
with Bill Lewis regarding the existing sign on the northern part of property, we 
plan to keep and use it. Currently it measures 14.5sft, we will cut it down into 
compliance to 12 ft. The sign that is on the building will be taken down. 

 
Chairman Bartow: Mr. Lewis what is the process on septic repair? 

 
Bill Lewis: They would need and engineered repaired plan from a design 
professional also needs health inspection by NYS Health Dept. They would require 
a safety draft as well, before any permits are given. 

 
Chairman Bartow: If you reach a point that cost of repairing meets or exceeds the 
cost of hooking up to public sewer, would you do that instead. 

 
Chip Lawrence: From what we have been told the cost to repair is 1/10 of the cost 
to hook up to public sewer. 

 
Bill Lewis: From the submitted application, it sounds like the tank is a functioning 
septic tank. It is common to have roots and debris in the leach field, 90% of the 
time the engineer sends a professional out to the leach field for taking in the 
accountability for the grease trap. 

 
Chairman Bartow: Questions? 

 
Mr. Marsicano:  You said the north side will no longer be paved?  But you’re going 
to put a dumpster on the bare ground? My concern is that dump trucks are going 
to spill oil. I think it should be paved. I think the trucks should be on payment. 
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Chip Lawrence: Correct, that was proposed. We were open to that but with the 
storm water issue the plan changed do to avoid the storm water prevention plan. 

 
Chairman Bartow: Any other comments? 

 
Mr. Collins: There is no regulations where the dumpster goes. Screened but not 
on pavement. 

 
Chairman Bartow: We typically ask that are screened.  Any other comments, if not 
we will open the public hearing at 7:22 pm.   If you have dialed in on the phone 
and would like to make a comment, please text Bill Lewis at 518-376-1831 and 
provide him your name and interest in making a comment. Also, please use the 
hand wave feature, or submit via the Q&A button and alert us to your interest in 
commenting. 

 
Is there anyone from the public that would like to address this project? Please 

come up and state your name and address.  

 

Ms. Arleen Ebert: My only question is regarding the “catch all” that is in the front. I 
would like to make sure that it is going away. 
 

Chip Lawrence: We just found out that there is a lease in place with current owner, 
until December. That is when we are planning to open. At the closing on the 
building, we plan to address the lease and see if we have to honor it or if we can 
break it.    
 
Chairman Bartow: There being no further public comment I will entertain a Motion 

to close the Public Hearing at 7:24pm; Mr. Collins Second, any discussion; please 

Poll the Board. Mr. Marsicano, yes Ms. Padula, yes Mr. Collins, yes Ms. Stevens, yes 

Mr. Whittel, yes Chairman Bartow, yes. 

 

Chairman Bartow: Having completed the SEQRA process and public hearing on this 

project I would ask the Board what else we need to see from the applicant to 

complete our review of this project?   
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Ms. Stevens: The only concern I would have been the sewer system because of the 

failure, but if it is going through Bill’s office, I am ok  

 

Chairman Bartow: Bill, just to be clear if they can’t get an engineered system in 

place, the only other option would be to hook up to the public sewer system.   

 

Bill Lewis: Yes, that is correct, if they want to operate in business, they must have a 

sanitary sewage. A septic permit would go through us, sewage permit application 

from Heritage Springs.  No building permit or authorization would be given until 

they have an active/ functional septic or sewer system.  

 

Chairman Bartow: Anyone in the waiting room or on zoom have any comments 

312 Rowland Street or the Kitchen project? 

 

Mr. Whittle: If we approve this, are we going to review the special use permit?  

 

Chairman Bartow: You mean in the future? Yes, this permit would be conditional 

on take out only and with no on-premises dining. If that changes in future, they will 

have to come back to the board for approval.  Any other comments from the 

board? If there is no further discussion at this time, I entertain a motion to approve 

the neighborhood kitchen site plan for 312 Rowland Street with the condition that 

the restaurant should only offer takeout and delivery with no on-premises dining. 

 

Mr. Whittle: Mr. Chairman I first the project dated 4/26/22, if you don’t mind the 

amendment 

 

Mr. Chairman: No  

 

Ms. Stevens: I second that motion  
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Any discussion: If there is no further discussion at this time, please Poll the Board. 

Mr. Marsicano, yes Ms. Padula, yes Mr. Collins, yes Ms. Stevens, yes Mr. Whittel, 

yes Chairman Bartow, yes. 

 

 

6. 201 Northline Road – Akari – Special Use Permit – 203.11-1-21 
Our next project is the application for Special Use Permit for a 

Membership Club or a Cigar Lounge. Everyone should have before 

them the following: 

1. Special Use Permit Application dated received 3/14/22 

2. SEQRA SEAF dated 3/12/22 

3. Property purchase agreement dated 2/18/22 

4. Agricultural Data Statement (not necessary) dated 3/12/22 

5. Site Map undated. 

6. Site Map dated 4/25/22 

7. Email dated 5/9/22 promising a set aside of land for roundabout and 

sidewalks/bike path. 

Would the applicant or their representative like to update the Board 

on the project? 

Chairman Bartow: Did you want to give us an update.  

Mr. Akari:  There really isn’t much of an update with the exception of 

the document that I submitted to the Board.  

Chairman Bartow: We discussed the document with our Town 

Attorney.  They are fine with the document, but we don’t have a plan 

in place just yet for the Route 50 corridor. Mr. Akari said that he will 

work with us. He can accommodate some land for the roundabout. 
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We will have to put that in the resolution, it would be a 5-year 

commitment. 

I will open the public hearing at 7:33 pm.   If you have dialed in on the phone and 

would like to make a comment, please text Bill Lewis at 518-376-1831 and provide 

him your name and interest in making a comment. 

 

There being no further public comment I will entertain a Motion to close the Public 

Hearing at 7:34 pm; Ms. Stevens Second Mr. Collins, any discussion; please Poll the 

Board Mr. Marsicano, yes Ms. Padula, yes Mr. Collins, yes Ms. Stevens, yes Mr. 

Whittel, yes Chairman Bartow, yes. 

 

Chairman Bartow: Anything the board would like to see on this project: 

 

Ms. Stevens: looking at the site plan, do you have a kitchenette? Will you be selling 

food or alcohol? 

 

Mr. Akari: We will have a microwave, not selling food or alcohol 

 

Mr. Marsicano: This lounge is for private and public members? 

 

Akari: Private members for the lounge and retail area for the public.  

 

Bill Lewis: On the document he provided, dated 4/27/22 the membership area is 

approx. 900sft and the store application is 700sft with a shared restroom, unisex 

lavatory, kitchenette from both spaces. It does have front and rear exists. He 

meets the parking requirements. 

 

Mr. Marsicano: I’m just trying to understand, you said that the smoking area itself 

is private?  Can someone come in and smoke a cigar? 

 

Mr. Akari: Smoking on both sides.  Members can come anytime they want but they 

will pay a membership fee to use the private room.  
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Chairman Bartow: Any other questions 

 

Ms. Stevens: There are no sales displays, I see a humidor. Do you have a sales 

counter?  

 

Mr. Akari: Yes, there is a sales counter, we will be selling accessories and cigars. 

Customers would grab cigar from humidor. 

 

Chairman Bartow: Any other comments from the board?  

 

Ms. Stevens: I would like to include the agreed upon document that Mr. Akari has 

submitted that states he is willing to offer to set aside dedicated land for 

roundabout and sidewalk. 

 

Mr. Bartow:  If there is no further discussion at this time, I Entertain a motion for 

the approval of a special use permit for a membership club-cigar lounge at 201 

Northline Road, on map dated 4/25/22 with 1 condition to offering to setting aside 

dedicated land for the roundabout and sidewalk. Mr. Whittle second Mr. 

Marsicano. Please Poll the Board Mr. Marsicano, yes Ms. Padula, yes Mr. Collins, 

yes Ms. Stevens, yes Mr. Whittel, yes Chairman Bartow, yes. 

 

7. 426 Geyser Road – Clapper – Special Use Permit and Site Plan Review 

Application – 190.- 1-30.2 

Chairman Bartow: Our next project is a new project for a Special Use 

Permit and Site Plan Review for a Dog Wash and Laundromat with a 

new second story to contain apartments. at 426 Geyser Rd.  This is 

in the Town Center and if it does constitute a “substantial 

modification” to the existing building then the TC Guidelines would 

apply. 

 

Everyone should have before them: 
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1. Site Plan Review Application dated 4/26/22 
2. Special Use Permit Application dated 4/6/22.  
3. Short Environmental Assessment Form undated. 
4. Agricultural Data Statement dated 4/22/22, not necessary. 
5. Building Plan dated 3/9/22 
6. Warranty Deed dated 3/27/14 

 
Regarding SEQRA this is an Unlisted Action, and I will entertain a Motion the Milton 

Town Planning Board be Lead Agency for the SEQRA Review; Ms. Stevens Second, 

Mr. Collins any Discussion; and, please Poll the Board Mr. Marsicano, yes Ms. 

Padula, yes Mr. Collins, yes Ms. Stevens, yes Mr. Whittel, yes Chairman Bartow, 

yes. 

 
 
Chairman Bartow: Is Mr. Clapper here or a representative of him to 
present this project to us? 
 
Mr. Jason Singer: I would like to introduce the project. Currently the 
building is being used as a beauty school. What he is looking to do is 
reuse the existing building.  He wants to put a laundry mat in one 
area and dog wash in the front of the building. Parking is currently in 
front area, he would like to keep commercial parking in the front. 
He would like to add residential dwelling units to the side with 
entries from the back also proposing to add a driveway with parking 
in the rear. Also adding 2nd story to top of building with 3-4 
residences with access from exterior. The 2nd story would be the 
same size at the first floor with 3-4 units, their access would be from 
the rear. We did not do a full analysis of the parking allotted at this 
point.  We are looking for feed back on the building use. 
 
Mr. Clapper: There is a lot of parking in the front, but we also have a 
lot of parking in back.  
 
Mr. Singer: Lots of space for parking in the rear at this time.  
 
Chairman Bartow: Is the front parking existing and paved? 
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Mr. Singer: Yes, it is a big parking lot.  
 
Chairman Bartow: Does any board members have any questions? 
 
Mr. Collins: Because this a laundry mat and/or wash or any kind are 
there any regulatory conditions that have to be done for a project of 
this nature. 
 
Bill Lewis: This would have to be an engineered design. I’ve had 
multiple meetings with Mr. Singer and Mr. Clapper over the years 
regarding this parcel. Talking about Town Center guidelines and the 
district sewer and water. Since he is on a well, he would have to the 
well evaluated, to make sure it is sufficient to operate the project 
without tying into the municipal water. The engineer would have to 
design a system if he was going to continue the use of his septic 
system that would support that operation. I’m thinking that would 
be so large that the footprint that he has might not be able to do 
that. But that would be up to the engineer to design that system.  
 
Mr. Clapper: Building was originally a convenient store, so they put a 
large septic tank in there.  The dog wash does not use as much 
water as you think. 
 
Bill Lewis: I think the question that Mr. Collins is asking is with the 
volume increase of the water that would be used for a laundry 
mat/dog wash.  It would have to be evaluated and an engineer 
would have to design a system that supports the number of washers 
you are using. Your residential system you have right now would not 
support a functioning laundry mat and it would have to be altered 
and repaired.  
 
Mr. Collins: Car washes are multimillion dollar projects for water 
treatments systems, because it is a major water use business would 
it fall under certain regulations? 
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Bill Lewis: Yes, there are certain regulations that would fall under a 
laundry mat. 
 
Mr. Whittle: How are you going to name business and market it? 
 
Mr. Clapper: It goes under the dog part of it. It would be called 
“Clean Paws. If I have to do away with the laundry mat, I’ll do that, 
but I want to keep the dog washing business.   
 
Mr. Whittle: Just trying to understand, why do you have to keep the 
dog part in there. Is that what you really want to do? 
 
Mr. Clapper: Everyone got a dog during the pandemic and want to 
wash their dogs and there is none around here. 
 
Mr. Whittle: You are going to put a whole second floor on top?  
Does building support that? 
 
Mr. Clapper: Yes.  The building has steel girders 
 
Mr. Singer: It is a steel structure, it would have to be analyzed again 
for footings, that has not been done. We do not know the dept of 
the existing footings. 
 
Mr. Whittle: Are you planning on sprinkler systems and all that 
stuff? 
 
Chairman Bartow: The building would have to be brought to code 
 
Mr. Singer: Only if is required. 
 
Mr. Lewis: It would need a sprinkler system. He would also have to 
have the apartments and other spaces meet the fire codes. Submit a 
plan. This is in the conceptional stages right now. I have talked with 
Mr. Singer and Mr. Clapper on several occasions that a full 
engineering report would be needed on the existing structural. The 
structure was built in the 80’s. It would need to meet energy codes 
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and support any additional weight going on top. That would be Mr. 
Singers’ department to design a building that is supported by the 
existing structure. 
 
Mr. Singer: Unless we came up with another layout, we would have 
to work on that. 
 
Bill Lewis: Issues with Town Center guidelines are the big hurtles. 
 
Mr. Whittle: How do you plan on meeting the Town Center 
guidelines? 
 
Mr. Singer: We are doing an addition up; we are not adding onto the 
footprint of the building. In the Town Center guidelines, we are 
allowed to have residential on the second floor.  As far as we know 
we are within the Town Center guidelines in a residential location.  
 
Chairman Bartow: I wanted to address that, this does meet the 
definition of a substantial alteration, it’s a change of use, you’re 
doing incredible alterations, particularly with adding a second story 
on. Which mandates us to have the Town Center guidelines come 
into effect.  
 
Mr. Singer: The idea is we are using the existing and building and 
building on top of it.  
 
Chairman Bartow:  We cannot authorize that. Code tells us that we 
have to mandate that an applicate follow Town Center guidelines 
when there is a substantial alteration.  The guidelines states that the 
building come up with 15 ft of the right of way. You can use the 
existing building if you are not doing anything substantial to it. You 
could change a buildings occupancy from one use to another, if it is 
similar and no physical changes, then these guidelines don’t apply. 
When there is a substantial alteration, where you are doing physical 
changes to the first story and adding a whole second story these 
guidelines kick in. 
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Mr. Singer: So you can’t really add a second story in this case, unless 
it is in the front. 
 
Chairman Bartow: Unless you come into compliance and move the 
building forward. Or build new building? 
 
Mr. Clapper: I don’t have those funds to build a new building. 
 
Mr. Whittle: Have you done the analysis? Is it cheaper to put on top 
than the front? Putting everything on top would mean you would 
need all new HVAC for both sections. If you build on front, you still 
have apartments in the back in the existing building, dog wash and 
commercial in the front.  
 
Mr. Singer: We have not looked at that analysis. I understand that 
would be easier and more less costly to add in front building. The 
existing building is industrial looking, has glass. That would have to 
be changed quite a bit. 
 
Mr. Whittle: yes; build it forward instead of on top.  Not sure of the 
economics, and not sure if there would be foundational issues in the 
new building. You are assuming that there are no issues with the 
existing buildings foundation.  
 
Chairman Bartow: You would lose a lot of parking in the front. The 
parking would have to be put in the back.  
 
Ms. Stevens: If he doesn’t build the 2nd story do all the Town Center 
codes still come in because he is changing the use of it.  Do the 
apartments in the back make a substantial alteration? 
 
Chairman Bartow: No, if he adapts to similar use and does no 
substantial alternations. If he is adding apartments in the back that 
is substantial alterations. If you are converting from a salon and to 
dog grooming and laundry mat, that would be a substantial 
alternation. 
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Mr. Clapper, I don’t have to do the laundry mat I could do another 
apartment, if that is the problem, the water use. 
 
Ms. Steven: No it’s the change of use that is triggering it. 
 
Mr. Clapper: Everything is a change of use, it was beauty school, 
before that it was Penske trucking.  
 
Mr. Whittle: If it was dog grooming area, is that different from a 
beauty school? I understand the between cutting dogs’ hair and 
people’s hair but it might not be a substantial alternation. 
 
Ms. Stevens: He still would not be able to do the apartments in the 
back though, and that is a big building to do just dog wash. 
 
Mr. Whittle: Maybe you should figure the economics.  You may find 
out that what you are trying to do is more expensive than putting 
something on the front. 
  
Chairman Bartow: Or doing a two-story building up closer. Tearing 
down the building and starting over. 
 
Ms. Stevens: Can they go the Zoning Board for a variance? 
 
Chairman Bartow:  What is the relief? Not an area, not a use, what is 
the hardship?  
 
Mr. Singer: It would cost so much more to do that. Then the original 
plan. 
 
Mr. Whittle: That would be an economic hardship, you would have 
to explain that. You could request to go 20-25ft instead of 15ft. 
Stating that you are trying to get into compliance.  
 
Mr. Bartow: That could be an area variance, if you state you are 
trying to maximize my compliance, getting closer to the road. 
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Mr. Clapper: go higher your saying? 
 
Mr. Singer. Basically, what they are saying we have to build in the 
front, we can’t put a second story on, because it is a substantial 
change, and you have to meet the Town center guidelines and move 
the building to the front.    
We need to go back and work through these things and get some 
numbers, or cut back, maybe using the existing the building and a 
similar use.  
 

8. 424 Geyser Road – Nolan Engineering - Site Plan Review (Revised) – 190.7-1-57 

Chairman Bartow: Our next project is a revision of a site plan review for a dental office 

at 424 Geyser Rd.  If you recall last November, we approved this project, and the 

applicant has come back to us with a revision that reduces the overall size of the 

project.  I would like to note that Jim Marsicano had recused himself at the last one 

and recusing himself from this project as well. The change we have from 

documentation we had from last November includes a site plan dated 4/8/22. 

Mr. Singer: This was approved a few months ago. Once they got through and started 

doing pricing and some of the insurance, things had changed for them, including 

reducing the number of doctors.  And it did not make sense for them to build such a 

large addition. We were trying initially to fit in what we could and bring it to the front. 

But once they looked through the whole process with the contractors, the cost of 

materials are too expensive. We came up with a plan to keep the site the same, same 

parking, just building less to keep the costs down. We are still trying to push to the 

front, but we are not getting 10ft-15ft requirement.  The previous plan will not work 

for them, because everything doubled in cost, the budget went way up from when we 

started.  

The new plan is just a smaller building, everything else stayed the same. 

Previous plan shows proposed site line dash line approved addition. The dash line 

marks where it brought the building to the front. We were keeping the existing 

driveway around the building, parking in the back, we brought the building all the way 

to the front, but the cost was too much. New plan is to build smaller building, less 

rooms, less costly. 

 



 

19 | P a g e  
 

Ms. Stevens: How far back is it set back now? 

 

Mr. Singer: 37ft. We are still building out to the front. But they are not going to be able 

to do what was already approved. 

 

Chairman Bartow: This would also require you to go to the ZBA for an area variance, 

for relief to get away from the required 15ft, you want to be more then 15ft. Is 

financial hardship sufficient to grant that? 

 

Mr. Keniry: It is a balancing test. Benefit vs. detriment, benefit to the applicate, 

detriment to the community. 

 

Chairman Bartow: At this point prior to our November 21st meeting, we did conduct 

SEQRA and site plan review with special use permit with the condition that the 

application work out the final storm water details. What we have now is a new project. 

We will need a new SEQRA, we don’t need a special use permit as they already have 

that.  It is considered a new site plan if they can get the relief from the ZBA.  

 

Mr. Singer: Is this considered a new project? It wouldn’t be a revision to a new project? 

 

Bill Lewis: For procedure purposes the original SEQRA is closed. You would have to 

initiate a new SEQRA 

 

Mr. Singer: What does this mean on my end? 

 

Chairman Bartow: It is an Unlisted action. You would need to fill out a short EAF, give it 

to us and then we will give it the ZBA. We will then do a determination significance. 

This action is to comply with SEQRA. Then you have to go to ZBA as soon as you can. 

We will declare ourselves as lead Agency tonight to get SEQRA going.  

 

Chairman Bartow: At this time, I will entertain a motion to declare this an unlisted 

action according to SEQRA and the Town of Milton Planning Board will be designated 

lead agency. Ms. Stevens, Mr. Collins second, any discussions? please Poll the Board 
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Mr. Marsicano, yes Ms. Padula, yes Mr. Collins, yes Ms. Stevens, yes Mr. Whittel, 

yes Chairman Bartow, yes.  

 

Chairman Bartow: For our purpose the public hearing is not mandated. Because 

the ZBA is doing a hearing, I’m suggesting we waive all the requirements for a 

hearing. I entertain a motion to waive the public hearing requirement for purposes 

of the site plan at 424 Geyser road. Mr. Whittle make motion as read, second Ms. 

Padula please Poll the Board Mr. Marsicano, yes Ms. Padula, yes Mr. Collins, yes 

Ms. Stevens, yes Mr. Whittel, yes Chairman Bartow, yes.  

 
9. 839 Murray Road – Robinson – Special Use & Site Plan Application – 176.-1-6.3 

Chairman Bartow: Our next project is an application for Special Use Permit and Site 

Plan approval for a single-family dwelling accessory residential use on a property in the 

R-2 zoning district.  The applicant is proposing an attached garage with an “in-law” 

apartment associated to an existing residential use.  

Everyone should have before them: 

1. Special Use Permit Application dated 3/6/22 

2. Site Plan Review Application dated 3/6/22 

3. Site Plan dated 2/20/22 

 

The applicant was also before the ZBA for an area variance relating to a side yard 
setback.  The ZBA established itself as Lead Agency pursuant to SEQRA for this 
project, so we do not have any further SEQRA obligations.  The ZBA has granted 
area variance relief. 
 

Chairman Bartow:  Does the applicant want to come up and talk about their 

project?  

Ms. Tonya Robinson:  My husband and I own the property and we also own a 
local gym.  My family is local, and my mother provides our childcare.  It is 
important for us to have my parents close by.  My father can answer more 
questions on the building.   
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Mr. Robinsons: We are looking to build a 3-stall garage with living space 
above it, 2 bedroom and 2 bath.  We are going to tie into the septic tank 
because it is 1500 gallon and that is what we need.  We are also going to tie 
into the well off the side of the building.  We have some contractors lined up 
and some family to help.   

Ms. Robinson:  All of them are sufficient sources.  

Chairman Bartow:  Has Joel done any engineering on this?  

Mr. Lewis:  I have not seen a report from him.  I don’t think this is something 
that we need to refer him to.  This is a residential structure.  The applicant 
must meet the fire code and needs to obtain a letter from an engineer 
regarding his wastewater.  The letter must state that the additional bedrooms 
will not impact the septic system.   

Chairman Bartow: I will entertain a Motion to schedule a public hearing 

for 7:05 pm on Wednesday June 8th; 1st Ms. Stevens, Second, Mr. 

Marsicano any discussion; Poll the Board. Mr. Marsicano, yes Ms. Padula, yes 

Mr. Collins, yes Ms. Stevens, yes Mr. Whittel, yes Chairman Bartow, yes. 

 

 

 

10. Other Business 

 

Is there any other business to be brought before the Board this evening?  

 
11. Adjourn 

There being no other business for the Board I will entertain a Motion to adjourn at 

8:25pm; Second Mr. Whittle, Mr. Collins any discussion; all in favor signify by saying 

Aye, 

 
    


